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SIXTY AND NINETY DAY NOTICE OF INTENT TO SUE
1. Sixty-day and ninety-day notice of intent to sue the Department of Justice, Navy, and Marine Corps by the Blue Eco Legal Council, a membership organization whose mission is environmental watchdog litigation and advocacy, and Steven B. Pollack as executive director and member.
1.1 Blue Eco Legal Council
Steven B. Pollack, Attorney
3390 Commercial Ave.
Northbrook, IL 60062
847-436-9566
1.2 The United States Federal Bureau of Investigation conducts firearm training on the Lake Michigan shoreline in North Chicago, Illinois.  By design, this Department of Justice range is oriented to discharge lead into the drinking water of the United States in violation of public nuisance laws, RCRA, the Safe Drinking Water Act, the Clean Water Act, the Rivers and Harbors Act, CERCLA, and the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement with Canada.  The EPA and Illinois state regulators refuse to enforce these federal laws that prohibit such discharge or to order a cleanup of past discharges. The federal laws contain citizen suit provisions, mandates for the federal government to adhere to the same degree as private polluters, and clear waivers of sovereign immunity for suits against the federal government.  That the DOJ is being brought in as a defendant, the Executive has fully abdicated its role as faithful executor of the federal environmental law when it polices itself.  
These comments outline the laws being violated by the United States Department of Justice via the Federal Bureau of Investigation through ongoing training exercises in the Lake Michigan watershed, therein disposing of lead bullets and other lead emissions which present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the local water supply; and further for owning contaminated federal property presenting an imminent and substantial endangerment to the local water supply and having failed to remediate it.
The Navy has violated its legal obligations to remediate past contamination as the discharger that created uncontrolled hazardous waste sites in the Lake Michigan watershed that present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the local water supply; and for potentially owning contaminated federal property presenting an imminent and substantial endangerment to the local water supply and having failed to remediate it.  
The Marine Corps has violated its obligation to remediate its past contamination as the discharger that created uncontrolled hazardous waste sites in the Lake Michigan watershed that present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the local water supply. 

These comments also outline the laws not being enforced by the United States Environmental Protection Agency, the Department of Justice, or the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency.  

These comments therefore serve as notice that the Blue Eco Legal Council intends to sue on behalf of its members generally, and those who live in the Lake Michigan Watershed specifically.
1.3 The Blue Eco Legal Council and Steven B. Pollack intend to sue the U.S. Department of Justice, U.S. Navy, and U.S. Marine Corps for violations of federal and state environmental laws resulting from its past and present training exercises next to and into Lake Michigan.
2 VIOLATION OF SEVERAL LAWS

2.1 Public Nuisance – The unauthorized dumping of uncontained and uncontrolled lead on the lake bed constitutes a public nuisance on state titled lands.
2.2 RCRA – Resource Conservation and Recovery Act – 42 U.S.C. § § 6901-6992k.

1. One goal of RCRA is to prevent future unregulated hazardous waste disposal sites.

2. Lead is a listed hazardous material bringing it under RCRA regulation.  See 40 C.F.R. Part 261, Subpart D.

3. The spent lead bullets are discarded material and abandoned as part of the lake oriented training and are therefore waste under RCRA. See 40 C.F.R.  § 261.2, 50 Fed. Reg. 614(Jan. 4, 1985), § 261.2(a)(2), §261.2(b).

4. The hazardous waste bullets are disposed of under RCRA by being discharged into the waters of the Great Lakes. See 42 U.S.C. 6903(3), 40 C.F.R. § 260.10, 40 C.F.R. § 264.

5. The lakeside training exercises therefore violate RCRA as illegal discharges of hazardous waste into the waters of the United States.

6. Clean Water Act violations are also violations under RCRA. See 40 C.F.R. § 257.3-3.

7. Uncontrolled discharge of lead onto the lake beds have created, and continue to create, open dumps that cannot meet sanitary landfill requirements and is therefore prohibited.  See 42 U.S.C. § § 6903(14), 6945(a).
8. The past and ongoing creation of uncontrolled hazardous waste dumps therefore poses an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public water supply. RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(B).
2.3 Safe Drinking Water Act – 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f-300j-26

1. The Great Lakes are part of the public water system. While the statute appears limited to ground water, U.S. EPA interprets its statutory authority to regulation of contaminants in any drinking water, including surface water. 50 Fed. Reg. 46,941-46,943 (Nov. 13, 1985).

2. Adding lead in any amount to the water column degrades the public water system and the lake oriented range operating inside the Lake Michigan Watershed (which serves as a public water source) therefore violates the Safe Drinking Water Act.

2.4 CWA – Clean Water Act (Federal Water Pollution Prevention and Control Act) – 33 U.S.C. §§ 1252-1387.

1. The purpose of the CWA is to “restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the nation’s waters.” 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a).

2. The “national goal” is to eliminate the discharge of pollutants. 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a)(1), (2).

3. The national policy is to prohibit the discharge of toxic pollutants in toxic amounts. 33 U.S.C. § 1251(1)(a), (3).

4. The CWA defines pollution as “the man-made or man-induced alteration of the chemical, physical, biological … integrity of water”.   33 U.S.C. § 1362(19).

5. The lakeside range is a point source under the CWA because it is a “discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance” 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).
6. The lakeside training therefore violates the CWA as a point source for lead bullets and lead contamination, which are toxic pollutants.

7. The FBI does not have a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit under the CWA to discharge lead into the waters of the United States.  

8. No NPDES permit may issue without public notice and is subject to hearings. 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a)(1).

9. Blue Eco Legal Council requests an adjudicatory hearing as required by the United States Supreme Court. Costle v. Pacific Legal Foundation, 445 U.S. 198 (1980).

10. The CWA requires the use of best available technology economically achievable for the applicable point source. 33 U.S.C. § 1317(a).  Green bullets without lead or laser training represent this standard.

2.5 TRI – Toxic Release Inventory - 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq., 40 C.F.R. Part 372.
1. Defines lead as a Persistent Bio-accumulative Toxin (PBT) one of the highest threats to natural resources and human health.

2. The TRI requires self-reporting of lead releases over 100 pounds.

3. It does not appear the Department of Justice, Navy, or Marines ever reported releases of lead from prior training exercises and are therefore in violation of TRI.

2.6 CERCLA – Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act – 42 U.S.C. §§9601-9675
1. Congress enacted CERCLA to address “the serious environmental and health risks posed by industrial pollution.” United States v. Bestfoods, 524 U.S. 51, 54 (1998). To carry out this goal, the statute grants “broad power to command government agencies and private parties to clean up hazardous waste sites." Id.

2. CERCLA Section 120 provides that  “[e]ach department, agency, and instrumentality of the United States . . . shall be subject to, and comply with, [CERCLA] in the same manner and to the same extent, both procedurally and substantively, as any nongovernmental entity . . . . “ 42 U.S.C. § 9620(a)(1). The statute further provides that “[n]o department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States may adopt or utilize any [ ] guidelines, rules, regulations, or criteria which are inconsistent with the guidelines, rules, regulations and criteria established by the Administrator,” – i.e., “the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency.” Id. §§ 9620(a)(2), 9601(2).

3. Upon petition, the US EPA is required under the National Contingency Plan to conduct a Preliminary Assessment into the release, or threatened release, of any hazardous substance that threatens human health or the environment, giving special consideration to releases affecting drinking water. See 42 U.S.C. § 9605
4. CERCLA requires permanent containment or reduction of exposure for hazardous wastes that threaten human health and the environment.  In evaluating the alternative methods of site closure, the agency must evaluate nine criteria, including such factors as the protection of human health and the environment; applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements under federal and state law; effectiveness and permanence; feasibility and cost; and community and state acceptance. Id. § 300.430(e)(9). Once the agency develops a proposed remediation plan, it must again solicit public input before making its Record of Decision, in which the agency must explain the basis for the chosen alternative. Id. § 300.430(f)(1)-(5).  

5. A prohibition on creating new uncontrolled CERLCA sites is implied by the RCRA statute.  RCRA provides for a cradle to grave system for disposal of toxic waste and 30-year financial assurances for containment once the site is closed.  CERCLA was enacted to address past releases, those occurring prior to RCRA safeguards.  The Department of Justice, in ignoring RCRA prohibitions and creating uncontrolled fields of lead in Lake Michigan that need to be assessed, is acting arbitrarily and capriciously with respect to RCRA and CERCLA.
2.7 Rivers and Harbors Act – 33 U.S.C. § 403-407.

1. The Rivers and Harbors Act prohibits the release of refuse into the navigable waters of the United States which might obstruct navigation. See 33 U.S.C. § 407.

2. The United States Supreme Court read into this act a prohibition on pollution.  See United States v. Republic Steel, 362 U.S. 482 (1960), United States v. Standard Oil Co., 384 U.S. 224 (1966).

3. The live fire exercises, insofar as they allow unpermitted discharges into the Great Lakes, violates the Rivers and Harbors Act. 

2.8 Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement of 1978 

1. Article II – Purpose

Consistent with the provisions of this Agreement, it is the policy of the Parties that: 
a. The discharge of toxic substances in toxic amounts be prohibited and the discharge of any or all persistent toxic substances be virtually eliminated; 
2. Article VI – Programs And Other Measures


1. The Parties…shall continue to develop and implement programs and other measures to fulfill the purpose of this Agreement and to meet the General and Specific Objectives…. The programs and measures shall include the following:


      (b) Pollution From Industrial Sources
ii. Requirements for the substantial elimination of discharges into the Great Lakes System of persistent toxic substances;
3. Lead in bullets is a persistent toxic substance

4. The discharge of lead by the U.S. Department of Justice into the Great Lakes therefore violates the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement of 1978.
3 Wherefore we demand the immediate irrevocable suspension of training activities that discharge lead into the environment and establishment of a complete cleanup plan for existing contamination in the next 90 days or else suit will be brought in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois.
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